

ALLEN THE SPY BY DERVON

PROLOGUE

Allen Bloomberg is a Grade A spy for his grandfather's organization S.S.A. (Secret Spy Association). Allen's grandfather told Allen to find out how the Mayor is getting so much money and prove it to the people of New York City. In the midst of that Allen makes a new friend, James Rolland, meets two people named Bob and Bill, and almost gets eaten by a wolf. Will Allen prove to the people that the Mayor is stealing money? Dun, dun, dun. . .

CHAPTER ONE THE CASE

Allen was sitting in his bed thinking about a mission his grandpa gave him. The Mayor was getting money and no one knows why and where he gets it from. Yesterday Allen saw two men in black put a paper on the Mayor's door step and jump into a black SUV. The Mayor came outside, quickly grabbed the piece of paper, hurried back inside, and pulled down the window shades. That was all Allen saw. Allen was hoping he could sneak into the Mayor's house with the secret passage he found a week ago and find out what was on the piece of paper.

"Oh no," Allen had forgotten he had school today. He had 20 minutes to get there or he would be late, and Allen was trying to get the perfect attendance award. Allen grabbed a bagel and ran out the door. He forgot his backpack and that he still had the clothes he wore to bed on. Allen ran back inside got his backpack and put some fresh clothes on. He rode his bike to school, which was covered with spider webs. Allen got to school with one minute to spare. He met his friend Kyle under the basketball hoop. Kyle liked to talk about sports.

"Allen, I want you to meet someone; his name is James. He is new to this school he also talks a lot," Kyle said.

"Why does the raccoon have a mask?" James asked. Allen knew what that question was code for. It meant, "I am part of your grandfather's agency. Are you, Allen?"

"Yes I am." Kyle looked confused. The bell rang. "Want to race?" Allen asked James and Kyle.

"I am going to win," said James as they raced to their homeroom. The Mayor was coming to Allen's school to talk about bullying, which was a big problem at Abe Kennedy Middle School.

"The talk about bullying is at 9:00 am," said Mrs. Huckletush. When it was 8:55, Allen strategically asked Mrs. Huckletush if he could get a drink. She said yes and to meet them in the Gym.

When Allen stepped out of the classroom, he saw a briefcase with a code lock on it, and the Mayor was standing over it putting in the code. Allen decided it probably was the Mayor's briefcase, and that there might be some information in it about the money. So Allen took out his binoculars looking at the last digits that the Mayor put in. Allen saw the numbers 2 and 0. Allen knew right away what the password was. It was 7520 because it was the Mayor's son's birthday, July 5th 2020. Everyone knew when the Mayor's son's birthday was because he went door to door asking everyone for presents. Allen was hoping to see the briefcase this afternoon when he planned to sneak into the Mayor's house.

After Allen got a quick drink he headed to the Gym. When Allen got to the Gym his class was not there. So Allen just sat on the bleachers next to a sign that said Mrs. Huckletush. In the next minute or so, Mrs. Huckletush and the rest of the class appeared through the door with the Mayor right behind them.

The Mayor was short and plump, and his face was as red and round as a tomato. His real name was Rudolf W. Giuliani. After the assembly Allen had Gym class. This is pretty much how Allen's day went. Gym was awesome, Music was fun, and everything else was boring. Allen would usually pay attention in Science, but today his mind was on something else. On his walk

home from school, Allen thought about how he could possibly get into the Mayor's house. The reflecting must have made him walk slowly, because when he arrived home, it was pretty late.

When Allen got home, he saw his mom and his sister Emily and noticed the clock. Allen's mom was pacing in the kitchen murmuring under her breath. Allen could tell he was in trouble so he tried to sneak to his bedroom. But then he heard a big sigh, and he was caught. Allen's mom stomped towards him and said, "Where have you been?! You know I have a meeting at the zoo today." Allen just shrugged. "You are grounded, young man."

"MOM! Do I still get the \$20 for babysitting Emily?"

She turned around and said, "No," and with that she stepped into the car. Allen stomped to his room and slammed the door. Allen could not believe that he was grounded. But then he remembered that his mom was not coming home until 11:00 pm, and it was only 5:00 pm right now.

Allen picked up his phone to call James, but then he hesitated. He remembered this morning when Kyle was introducing James that he said that James was a big talker. During the assembly James talked the whole time. It was kind of annoying. Allen could not take any chances. He took his hand off the phone. Allen went into the living room and gave Emily her toys and some food. Emily could not tell on Allen because she was only 2 years old. Allen stepped out the door and there was James.

"Where are you going?" said James.

"To check something out," said Allen.

"Where?" said James.

"The Mayors house," said Allen.

"Why?" said James.

"It's my mission said Allen, and I would like to go now if that's fine with you." James stepped out of the way and followed Allen to the Mayor's house.

"How are you going to get in?" James asked. Allen didn't respond, but just felt the wall next to him. There he found a button that blended in with the house. Allen pressed it, and a door slid open. Allen saw a desk with a barricade of boxes around it. He went up the stairs in front of him. Eventually Allen came to a huge kitchen. On the counter was the Mayor's briefcase. Allen quickly and quietly grabbed the briefcase. That's when Allen heard footsteps.

Allen went behind the trash can when two of the Mayor's servants came walking down the hall. "Hard day of work, am I right?" one of them said. Allen accidentally kicked an empty soda can.

"Did you hear that?" said one of the servants.

"It is probably one of those rats." Then the servants walked away.

"That was a close call," James said, wide-eyed. Allen and James ran all the way home, fortunately before Allen's mom came home.

CHAPTER TWO THE BRIEFCASE

In the morning Allen went outside to retrieve the newspaper. On the cover the headline screamed, "LOCAL BACNK ROBBED." Allen went inside and read the story while he ate breakfast. Then he went to check out the robbery. When Allen got to the bank he went over to Mr. Harris, the owner of the bank. It looked like he just finished an interview with News 65. "Hey, Mr. Harris, may I have a word with you?" asked Allen.

"Yes what do you want?"

"Tell me everything that you know about the robbery," said Allen.

"Well I did not see much," said Mr. Harris. "I was coming out of my office. I saw my coworker on the floor leaning against the wall, and the safe was opened. I saw two men in black going out of the bank with two suitcases filled with money. They were long gone before the police showed up."

"Can I see the security cameras please?" said Allen.

"Yes," said Mr. Harris. The room with the security cameras had about a dozen screens.

"About what time did you see the men in black?" Allen said.

"Around 9:00pm last night," said Mr. Harris. "Why?"

"Can you please put the screens back to 8:40 pm? I want to see how they opened the safe," said Allen. Allen saw the two men in black come inside the bank and hit the coworker on the back of the head which knocked the coworker out cold. The robbers took up his body, and opened his eye in front of the sensor which opened the safe. They put the co worker up against the wall and took two briefcases that were for sale at the bank and grabbed as much money as they could and put them into the briefcases.

When Allen went home he called James over to see what they could find in the Mayor's briefcase. When Allen opened up the briefcase a slip of paper fell out. It looked like it was the paper that the men in black put on the Mayor's door step. It read, "Consider package ready. Meet at docks 10:00 pm Friday." Allen was guessing that would be today. Allen definitely planned to be there. This could be the answer to how the Mayor is getting so much money. "Wait," said Allen. "I think I know how he is getting the money."

It all made sense now it was obvious how the Mayor was getting so much money. He was stealing it, and the men in black are probably his goons stealing the money for him. All Allen had to do now is get proof.

CHAPTER THREE THE REWARD

Kyle and Allen went with Allen's mom to the park to meet Allen's dad, Michal Bloomberg. Allen's dad was running for Mayor of New York City. He had just come back from a meeting in Albany. "Who wants ice cream?" asked Allen's dad.

"We do!" Allen and Kyle shouted. Allen had cookie dough ice cream, Kyle had cookies n' cream, and Allen's mom and dad had Vanilla ice cream. On the window of Conn's ice cream shop Allen saw a sign that read "Missing briefcase - Reward \$250." It made Allen think that stealing the briefcase might not have been such a good idea. Then he thought if he were to give the Mayor back his briefcase, he could get \$250 to buy a camcorder. Allen would use the camcorder to get footage of the Mayor taking money. So Allen excused himself and ran home for the briefcase. When Allen got to the Mayor's house he rang the doorbell. The mayor came to the door.

"What is it?" said the Mayor.

"I found the briefcase," Allen said. The Mayor stretched his hands out for it but Allen put it behind his back.

"Give me the money first," said Allen.

"Fine," said the Mayor. He gave Allen the money. Then Allen gave him the briefcase. Allen went to the Best Buy across the street and bought the camcorder that he had been looking at for weeks. It was awesome. Allen went back to the ice cream store where his ice cream was waiting for him. After Allen finished his ice cream, he said to Kyle, "I am a spy."

"I know," Kyle said.

"How?" Allen said.

"I figured it out," said Kyle, and that was that.

CHAPTER FOUR THE DOCKS

It was 9:00 pm and Allen was getting ready to go to the docks to observe the handoff of money from the two men in black to the Mayor. These are a few things he brought: three flashlights, three camouflage coats, and one pair of binoculars. Allen, James, and Kyle all rode their bikes to the docks. Allen then thought, "What if the Mayor sees our bikes?" So they parked their bikes one block from the docks, and walked back to them.

James had the camcorder in his hands. They hid behind the shack near the last dock, and the woods where behind them. It was 9:55. Allen wanted to get there early because if the Mayor came before them, it all would have been for nothing.

In the next minute or so, a black SUV pulled up, and 2 minutes later a Lincoln pulled up. Two men in black came out of the SUV and the Mayor stepped out of the Lincoln and said, "Bob! Bill! My friends, what do you have in store for me today?" Bob and Bill (the two men in black) each took out two silver cases with money in them.

Allen said to James, "Are you getting all of this?"

"Sure am," said James. Bob opened the case and said, "That is \$1,000,000, boss."

The Mayor squealed like a little girl, "My money, my money." The Mayor put the money in a sack, put the sack in the trunk of his car, and threw the cases on the ground. Then James dropped the recording camera, and that's when things started going wrong.

CHAPTER FIVE WOLF

Allen, James, and Kyle hid behind one of the big trees. Bob and Bill where checking in the shack for them. Then Allen heard a growl; it was a wolf.

When Allen saw the wolf his face turned red from not trying to scream. "James and Kyle, start climbing the tree *slowly*," said Allen. A moment later, when the wolf was only three feet away from the tree, Allen started to climb. Just then the wolf started growling and scratching at the tree.

"We can't stay up here forever!" James said. Then Kyle took out a ham and cheese sandwich out of his backpack. "KYLE! THIS IS NOT THE TIME FOR EATING!" But Kyle ignored him and threw the sandwich as far as he could, which was pretty far; he should consider trying out for the football team.

The wolf ran after the sandwich. James and Allen cheered. "We have to get out of this tree though. The sandwich won't distract it for long," said Kyle. They all jumped out of the tree. The Mayor and the men in black where gone.

"James did you get everything?" Allen said. "Yes I did." James said.

CHAPTER SIX SUPPLIES

Allen woke up early in the morning and left a note on the fridge telling his mom where he was. He went with Kyle and James to the park. When they got there they discussed what they were going to do with the recording. They decided that they were going to go to Melvin's house; Melvin was a computer genius. He had a cabinet full of awards. When they got to Melvin's house, the door opened just as they stepped on the door mat. Allen stepped inside. Melvin was on the floor with a TV ripping stuff out of it. "What are you doing?" Allen said.

"Nothing of your concern," said Melvin. "What do you want?"

"I need to ask you a question," said Allen, "Do you like the Mayor?" "No," said Melvin.

"Good," said Allen, "We have a plan to take him down. Last night we caught him on video accepting stolen money."

"Ok so you want me to hack into the big screen in the center of town, hook it up to the camcorder and show this video to everyone in town."

"Pretty much," said Allen. He gave Melvin \$10.

"Allen shouldn't we get some supplies from the head quarters?" asked James.

"Of course," Allen said. "Kyle its time you met my grandfather."

Allen went to the alley next to the Mayor's house where there was a dumpster. He took up two blue pebbles from the ground and threw them at the dumpster two times. The top of the dumpster opened up. There was a metal slide, which they slid down and landed on a platform. Allen said, "Strange wild geese don't have horns."

"Accesses granted," said a metallic voice. As soon as Allen stepped in he was engulfed in a huge bear hug.

"Hi Allen," said grandpa. "What brings you to headquarters?"

"We have a new recruit, Kyle. But we need some supplies first." said Allen. Allen was about to tell his grandpa the supplies he needed when he remembered that the building had mind reading powers. So he just had to think of what he wanted. Allen concentrated. Suddenly the supplies he needed were right there: automatic boxing gloves, rope, duct tape, and a Swiss army knife. "Awesome," shouted Allen.

"Someone stole the invisibility cloak yesterday. The two people were dressed in black," said grandpa. Allen but was not paying attention. He saw a big submarine behind his grandpa's back.

"What is that?" said Allen.

"It is for under water missions. Maybe I'll teach you the controls some time," grandpa said.

"Anyways we got to go," said Allen. "See you later."

CHAPTER SEVEN BILL AND THE DOG

Allen, James, and Kyle picked up Melvin from his house, and they all went to the building with the big screen on top. They used the ladder at the side of the building to get up to the top. when they where there Melvin got right to work. Allen checked out the supplies he had picked up at HQ. Allen had automatic boxing gloves, rope, and duct tape. Who knows when they could come in handy?

A few moments later Allen heard a thump. When he turned around he saw Bill with a Chihuahua and his mom! Allen's mom had duct tape on her mouth and her hands where bound behind her back. "What's with the dog?" asked Allen.

"You'll see," said Bill. He snapped his fingers, and the dog turned into a griffin. It made a loud wail; Allen could hear people screaming below. "The griffin won't stop until I am knocked out," said Bill. Allen knew just what to do. He reached behind him and grabbed the automatic boxing gloves. It automatically punched Bill in the face, and he was knocked out cold. The griffin turned back into a cute little puppy as soon as it was about to bite a women on the head. Allen left his mom with her hands bound and the duct tape on her mouth because he did not want to hear her whining about how dangerous it was to be up here.

Melvin said, "I'm done. What was the entire ruckus out here?" "You don't want to know," said Allen.

CHAPTER EIGHT THE END

The video will start in two minutes. Allen, James, Kyle, and Melvin, along with Allen's mom crawled into the vent. As soon as they all went in, the vent collapsed. They dropped into the Yoga Palace, the place Allen's mom does yoga. Everyone in the room was staring at them. Well, what would you do if four middle school students (with a women that had her hands bound and duct tape on her mouth) crashed through the ceiling? Well I personally would have taken a broom and started hitting the boys.

"Sorry about the ceiling," said Allen. He helped his mom up and walked out the door. The video was almost done.

A few minutes later it ended. Everyone was silent. The Mayor's car pulled up. The Mayor opened his car door so hard it flew off. The Mayor screamed, "Bob go get Bill off of that roof right now and buy me a Ferrari! Oh and while you're at it get me a box of donuts." Everyone stared at him. He said, "Do you really believe this video that this kid put up?" as the Mayor pointed to Allen. "Kids and their technology these days," complained the Mayor.

Then Allen thought of something that would convince everyone. Allen said, "Remember the part in the video when the Mayor threw the briefcase? If he threw the briefcase wouldn't it still be at the docks?" Allen saw people nodding.

"To the docks then," said a random citizen.

When Allen reached the docks, the briefcase was nowhere in sight. Allen looked everywhere. Just as Allen was about to give up, he went to sit down on the sand. Except he was not on the sand. He wasn't even on the ground. Something was holding Allen up.

Then Kyle came over and said, "Didn't your grandpa say that two men in black stole the invisibility cloak yesterday?"

"Oh yeah," said Allen. He got up from what he was sitting on and took the invisibility off. It was the briefcase. "Yeah!" Allen cheered. Someone must have called the police because Allen heard sirens.

Then the Mayor started to run. When the Mayor was running, he turned his head and said, "You will never get me!" Then the Mayor slammed into a tree.

"Don't have to!" shouted Allen. When the Mayor was getting back on his feet, the police handcuffed him. The Mayor was pushed into the police car while he was yelling Allen's name like this, "I will get you Allen Bloombeeeerg!"

"There's the end of a really long day," Allen said to James. James totally agreed.

EPILOGUE

It's been two days since the Mayor was arrested, sentenced to life in prison, and Allen's dad became the Mayor. Allen was having a celebration sleepover with James and Kyle, and they were all having a great time. But then James got a phone call and left the room. When he came back, Allen asked what it was. James sighed. "My dad's been kidnapped."